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Split Rock Furnace
Split Roek
Horris County, Hew Jersey

Owners: 'he Kayor and Aldermen of Jersey ity

Dates of Erection: Turnace Ho, 1 in 1B6E, tb replace
previous forges bullt in or before 1BU3S and
rebuilt 1837

Architect:
Unimown

Bulliders: Ebenezer Farrand before 1305; Andrew Bell
Cobb 1837 and 1862

Present Condition:
Structures now abandoned and in ruing; slte
forms part of water shed for Jersey City

Haterials of Constructilon:
Stone lald up without mortar, iron tie-rods,
briclk lined core in furnaces :

Higtorlical Data:

A recent author(a) states that (guote) The
Split Xock Bloomery D) located on Seaver Lake aboutb
four miles northwest of Zoonton, was bullt sccording
to iiishop, about 1790 by kbenezer Per rrendl. The land
on which thils plant was situated was part of a tract
located by James Purker and Andrew Zell, and originally

() Charles S. Poyer, Sarly forges & Iurnaces in New
Jerseye 1931, pe 211le Lo JeLs Bishop, Hist. of Amer.
senuihctures I, 543, 2, The name Split Rock is sup.

to have orige. from character of rocks in bed of Beaver
Prook passing betw. rocks greatly split by the streanm,
Se JaBe Pearse, Iron Manufacture, pe 71, probh. coniased
with 01d Boonton Works. 4. Hede Geologe Survey, 1910,
e Se
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the survey also included the Durham Forge lands,
Pearse says a slitting mill at Split Vock®? was
owned by David Ogden in 1770, agﬁ was the first
one to he bullt in the Province“s. Thls property
was boupzht by Colonel lLemuel Cobb and formed part
of a 3UC0 acre tract at Split Hoek which was
eventually devised to his three heirs, Andrew B,
Cobb, kirg, W.C.,H, Waddell and krs, Benjamin Howell,
In the division of the estate, the forge fell to

(o) The suthor states, page 5, thait in the "bloomery"
forge the chareocal fuel on the open hearth was pushed
up agalnst the air=blast 1Inlet, and that upon this
inclined hed of hot cosls was placed the ilron ore,

flux and charcoal, In our survey of the several

ruined remains at the site, no evidences of the open
fire described as essential to the "bloomery" forge

wag found., Accordingly, and from the following
discoveries there, we must describe this Split Rock
plant as a furnace, not a "bloomervy", The remalns

of & large stack (noe 1 on our drawings) on the east
glde of Reaver Brook certainly are those of a8 furnacs.
This wes probably the charceal blast furnace mentioned
in the guctation above as having been erected in 1862,
Well-defined portlons of a stone wall some 64 fset
Glrectly vehind this furnace and level with 1ts too

(see Arawing 2) proo-bly are foundatlons of a lsrgc
storage housc from which iron ore, charccal and lime
were wheeled across a bridpe (now missing) to the top

of the furnace. A smaller stack (no. 2 on our drawings)
bearing no marks of melted metal on its interior, was
probably used as a lime kiln to produce thet nececasity
for the flux used in the blagt furncce (no. 1), Westward
across Beaver rock are the foundations of a crushing
mill, Hemalns of Ebenezer Yarrandls "Vorge, Sew 1ill,
coal house and other outhouces" wmentioned in his conveyance
of 2 Sept. 1803, have not been identiiied smong thelr
successors, The stacks and foundetions now found on the

site,
DATA AT GOF2RED A9 13T GUARANTEED
g P ARMARED
- BY LIBGATY GF GOubiEs:



HARS T ~553

Page &

Andrew Be Cobb, who greatly enlarged and improved
it. The next deflnite information which we have
of the works at this place is found in "Dover
Fistory", where 1t is stated that in 1816 Lemuel
Cobp was operating a forpge of two fires. In the
tax 1%st of Pequannock township for 1822, John
bizonic) is assessed for two fires at Split Roel,
at whieh time it was known as Dixon's Forge. A.G.
Cobb was rumning an ironworks at this place in 1850,
which is probably the one Professor Cook refers to
as having been built in 1837.% he last charcoal
blagt furnace bullt In the 3tate was erected ai
Split Hoek about 1862, but was soon abandoned,®
(End of ouotation)

Verification of the above account and
supplement thereof with additional dates and facts
of the sueccessive ownership of the property from
1798 to the present time has been possible 28 the
result of sesrch of title as recorded in the County
archives,

The Surveyor Gsneral, according to the
records of his office still preserved 1in Perth Amboy,
made a reburn {(or report} aated 16 April 1793 of nis
survey of a certain 825.5 acre tract In Pequannccl:
ZTownshlp, Morris County, for the owners, James Parker
and Anarew Bsll, "at the request of Ebenezer Farrand,'
In the southwest part of this large tract was Split
:toek Lalle oy Pond, i'rom the southwest cna of vhich ran
Beaver Brook, The muins of the furnace, forge and
crushing mill here surveyed are found at that outlet
of the pond., This tract was purchased by Ebenezer
Farrand "at different periods of Hartshorne Fitz
Handolph, Renjamin Howell, Abraham Oguen, James Farker
end Andrew Rell," before 2 Septenber 1803,

(c) By deed of 13 Jan. 1884, Andrew Pell Cobb and
Tenjamin Howell, executors of the estate of Lemuel
Conlr deed. {(oe ¥vo supra) conveyed to one James Dixon
a 208 ascre tract on "3ack kountain" east of the head-
waters of Hiddlebrool, In requanncek Twp., liorris Co.
Cuery if Jonn Dixon suvpra is error for James. The
County records show that the 3plit Rock furnace was
never owned by one John or James Dixon. He may have
leased it, but the deed here clted Indicates a forge
elscwhere than at Split Hockk for Dixon,.
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Likewise, a relturn of survey of a 325
acre tract adjascent to the southwest corner of the
large one abovesaeld, enc bounded west by the famous
Hivernla Forge btract, was made to the execubtors of
the estate of Peter Van Brugh Livingston on lst liay
in the same yezr 1793, who conveyed the fract to
Lemuel Cobb and ne in turn to “Ucnezer Farrand abovew
sald.

Partly surrounding toe northward projection
of the large trcet was cne of L3V acres osg described
in a returm of survey thereof made cn o Tanaury 1798
to the devisees of Hary Ashfield. These helrs
conveye@ this treset within 18 months to Iemuel Cobb
and he by deed of 24 June 179% to Ebenezer Farrand
abovenomed,

By deed of 2 Septembnr l'"b, thls Ebenezery
Farrand of Hanover Yownshilp, liorris Vountj}, conveyed
21l thrce of the tfactu, sbtove mentloned, Lo Lemubl
Cobb of same ovlace, for 4EL62,50, deseribing them as
"lving at Splitroeck Forge. The first trect is
situated on both sides of BDeaver Ulrook about four
miles SDLLQO”Ly from old Charlottourgh Furnace in the
Townshin of Peqguanaclk," beginning near the wabter-wheel
of grantor's saw mill on Eeaver Zrook, incluaing in
this conveyvance "the sSplitrock iorcse, HSaw Hill, Coal
House and other out~houses," and reciting the facis
of previous owncrship of the thrce adjincent tracts as
outlined avove in this text,

2y his will doted 15 Octbober L8277 anc proved
18 fay 1851l, the gruntee lLemuel Cobo boling azed 65
vears snu O months, devised to his son andrew 3, Cobb
the 1U0 acre "ferm or plantation wherson I now 1ive"

o,

tuate in u—ncvo Horris County, osounded east and

north by the rars )sanf Parsorcre forvm, and the
residue of hils re .T and personsl estete to hils daugnter
Dligzaveth's husband Zdenjomin howell of Troy, to nis

davghter Hakia ¢, Kirkpatriclk's only son Bugene, to
his daughter Julia Ann, (wife of YWn, 0. H, Woddell),
ana to his son Andrew P, Lobb, ecually,

CATA BT CSUIPIED A3 10T GUACATERD
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In deeds of E7 December 1838, dividing
this resl esbate,; Howell and ¥Waddcll, each with
his wile, abovenamed co-devisers of the will of
Lemucl Cobb as ahovesaild, culit-clalimod to a third
heir, the son Andrevw *, Cobb, 28 tracts cf land in
liorris and in Passalc Cournrtles, comprising a total
of 3655 seres, The first of thcoae was described
¢ being part of Mue great Split locl tract zituated
on bobth wides of Beaver Urook" in Feouvannock Township,
eontaining 643 of the original 825,95 acres. 0 the
other tracts conveyed, no £ comnrised some 452 acres
adjacent on the nortk of the {first, no, 5 some 118
acres on the south, ro, 4 sone 52 adjacent Lo the 3rd,,
noe © some 86 adjacent to the south side of no. 1,
nc. & some %2 andjecent on the north, and no, 7 some
128 also adjacent, these 7 Lracts aleone forming a
crout tract of some 1877 scres arocund Split Hock rond,
and evidently the chiel slte of the minlng operaticns
nertinent to the Lron manufaot?r? in the plant thereon
whose ruins are lere surveyeds. a

(d) Split Hoek or Cobb iinc, Tockaway Twp., lorrig

Co.s; on southesst cide of Split Rock Pond., The principal
vein of ore licre has been traced by the compagz for a
mile end hag been opened and worked for half that
distance. ‘The worklings are at twe points: the laypest
near the foot of the hill ana on its slope and the other
neer its summit. The veln et the foot of the 11l is
alovt tve ana a balf fect thick, and had besen verked in
Just zovove the wvater level [or nearly a cuerter of a
riile, and until there is one hundred fecet of material
overhead, The dilp of the veln 1s 70 degrecs southezct in
solid sneiss roek, (n the hill the vein has been opened
more recently, and thoe work is much less extensive,

The veln s cbtout five feet tindek, with a noreow sireak
of rock in the middle of i1t. 1ts dip is seoabtheast 78
desrees, The ore is apparently free from sulphur, When
workzed in the forge withoul senarating, it makes a hot
snort lron. In the furnace it weorks well rrodueing a
hard and strong iron which has been ruch approved for car
wheels. The furnace at Split Rock has been run by Judge
Cobb on this ore, uslng it after It has been ¢ rushed and
separated and melting it with charcoal. {(Geo. H. Cook,
Geolony of Ted,, 1868, p. 556},
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Andrevw 2, Cobb thus came into possession
of what must have been the major portion of his
fatherts real estete, including the homestead, and
the forge. Torer states that he "greetly enlarzoed
and improved 1t". Dy hilg will dated 20 November
1869 and nproved 12 February 1873, hc as indrew Da
Cobb of far51ppany3 rorris County, devisced to iis
ezccutors in trust for 20 years sll { lands and
premiscs situate in Rockaway Townshiple), uwoerris County,
embracing what is generally known as mv Splitrock tract
upon which is the water power, Blast furnace, Forge;,
Say Bill, Storehousc, dwelling ucuse and other bullidings,
containing 3B0OC acres of land", to be lessed for the
benefit of nis estate, "being convinced that the minerals
wilch are known te be upon them, and which will be
discovered, are of great valuve and will produce a large
income to my estate if rented for the purpose of mining,"
and granted them povier to sell the property at the end
of that period. In a codiell of 27 July 1871, the
testator Andrew . Cobb directed his son Andrew 1L,
Cobbh to have the vse of the seven tracts orming the
origlinal B8plitrock tract of 878 acres until he came of
age.

The son andrew L. Cobh of Pesrsipcany,
leased a tract of 500 acres Including a surrounding
Split Rock rFond to the Vonteleir :ister Company for
S years on 11 April 1889, with optlon to purchase
ity and renewved the same on 7 harch 1894,

By deed of 11 Agril 1806, the said
corporation exercised thelr cptlon and purchased
the tract.

By deecd of 4 April 1822, they conveyed

the same to the Montclajir Service Corporation of
tlew York City, with some 257 acres "nart of the great

{(g) Croated 1844 from liznover and Feguennock TWps.

g =
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8plit Hock Tract 51tuate cn bvoth sides of Beaver
arook', fequan wel Township, "which was returned
Lo James Parker snd Andrew Tell at the reguest of
Ybeneger Farrand" 16 April 1793 as 825.5 zcres,
Included in this convevance were © other tracts
ad jacent, comprising some ¢8C scres additional,
vinally, by deed of 19 December in the same yealr,
this corporation conveyed the same property to the
Hayor and Aldermen of Jeruey City, who remalin as
ovners at the time of our survey of the ruined
forge and furnace on the site,

Reference;
Search of btitle in land and probate

records of Lorris County by Thomas J.
Riley, reported September 13, 1940
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Supervising Historian
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